
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, November 18, 2024 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements 
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held October 21, 2024 

b. Approve 2025 Meeting Calendar 
 

8. Employee Recognition 
 

BUSINESS 
 

9. Planning Commission Appointments 
10. Bid Selection: Shelter for Main Street Park 
11. Special Called Meetings for Mayor & Council Retreat 

 

 STAFF REPORTS 
 

12. Bob Bolz, City Manager 
13. Robin Gazaway, Finance Director 

 

  MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED: Pending or Potential Litigation, Real Estate Acquisition and/or Personnel     

     RESERVED FOR POTENTIAL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS, IF NEEDED 
 

     ADJOURNMENT 
  

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, December 2, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk 
at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/18/2024 
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held October 21, 2024 

b. Approve 2025 Meeting Calendar 
 

 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/18/2024 
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD OCTOBER 21, 2024 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, October 21, 2024 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 2 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Walden called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember William Illg, Councilmember Sandy Sawyer, 
Councilmember Mark French, Councilmember Caleb Phillips, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City 
Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utility 
Director Jacob Barr, Finance Director Robin Gazaway, Downtown Development Director Amanda 
Edmondson and Planning Director Ron Haynie.     

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE: Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember Phillips.   

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Walden announced the applicant for ZSP C2400135 - Item #10, has 
withdrawn his application.  He further invited the public to attend the 165th Anniversary of the City on 
December 2, 2024 at the Gordon Pirkle Room from 6:00 – 8:00 pm and the Christmas Tree Lighting 
and Parade on November 23, 2024.  

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by W. Illg; second 
by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None     

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a) made by S. 
Sawyer; second by M. French. Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Special Called Meeting held September 30, 2024 

 

8. PRESENT DONATION OF TRAINING ITEMS TO DAWSON COUNTY EMS:  City Manager Bolz 
presented the training items to John Shaffer of Dawson County EMS.  
 

9. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  City Manager Bolz introduced the City’s newest intern from UNG, Joy 
Wood.  The Mayor and Council recognized Amanda Edmondson for two years of service and Clay 
Moss for six years of service.  Clay Moss was recognized as the September Employee of the Month 
and Trampas Hansard as the Summer Employee of the Quarter and Jacob Barr received a thirteen-
year service award.     

 

BUSINESS 
 

10. ZSP C2400135: Christopher Sipos has petitioned to amend the existing site plan; located at 39 
Creekstone Lane (TMP 083 020).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on Monday, July 8, 
2024, and City Council Monday, September 16, 2024.  City Council for a decision on Monday, 
September 30, 2024 – Tabled to September 16, 2024. 

 

Planning Director Haynie reported his department received a letter from the applicant, Christopher 
Sipos, withdrawing his application to amend the existing site plan.   
 

11. RESOLUTION NO. R2024-04: A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 
Dawsonville, Georgia, Implementing A Fine Schedule For Violations Of Certain Ordinances Found 
Within The Code Of The City Of Dawsonville, Georgia; And For Other Purposes. 
 

Motion to approve Resolution No. R2024-04 made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  (Exhibit “A”) 
 

12. RESOLUTION NO. R2024-05: A resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Dawsonville 
to Award a Contract Concerning a Test Well and Microscopic Particulate Analysis. 
 

Motion to approve Resolution No. R2024-05 made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  (Exhibit “B”) 

 

13. HEALTH INSURANCE RENEWAL: DECEMBER 2024 – NOVEMBER 2025:  Motion to approve the 
cost increase and to stay with the current plan and company for health, dental, vision, LTD, STD and 
life insurance made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, October 21, 2024 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 2 
 

14. FY 2024 BUDGET AMENDMENTS:  Motion to approve the FY 2024 budget amendments as 
presented made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  (Exhibit “C”) 

 

15. PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT FOR LAND EXCHANGE:  Motion to approve the agreement 
as presented contingent upon the acceptance from the property owner’s mortgage company made 
by M. French; second by S. Sawyer.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  (Exhibit “D) 

 

WORK SESSION  
 

16. CITY PARKING ORDINANCE OPTIONS:  Motion to table the item indefinitely made by S. Sawyer; 
second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

17. 2025 MEETING CALENDAR:  The Mayor and Council discussed various options regarding their 
meetings in 2025.  The City Clerk will present the final 2025 meeting calendar at the next meeting for 
approval.    

    STAFF REPORTS 
 

18. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  Bolz reported there were two leak adjustments totaling $159.69.  
 

19. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE DIRECTOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances and 
activity through September 30, 2024 were provided in the packet.  Director Gazaway also reported 
she reinvested the Certificates of Deposit for the Cemetery funds with United Community Bank at 
3.6% for eleven months.  

 

   ADJOURNMENT 
 

At 5:19 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by C. Phillps; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. 

  
 

 Approved this 18th day of November 2024 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   John Walden, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  
 
         
   Sandra Sawyer, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "B"



REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget Amended Budget

100-0000-311100 ELECTRIC FRANCHISE FEES 185,000.00 165,000.00 185000
100-0000-311315 MOTOR VEHICLE TITLE AD VALOREM TAX      101,000.00 66,000.00 101000
100-0000-311730 GAS FRANCHISE FEES 15,000.00 13,000.00 15000
100-0000-311750 TV CABLE FRANCHISE FEES 0.00 10,000.00 0
100-0000-311760 TELEPHONE FRANCHISE FEES 25,000.00 20,000.00 25000
100-0000-311790 GARBAGE FRANCHISE FEES 8,850.00 7,500.00 8850
100-0000-311795 BROADBAND FRANCHISE FEE 500.00 775.00 500
100-0000-313100 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 1,800,000.00 1,600,000.00 1958050
100-0000-314200 ALCOHOL EXCISE TAX 114,000.00 115,000.00 114000
100-0000-314500 EXCISE TAX ON ENERGY 0.00 50.00 0
100-0000-316100 OCCUPATION TAX 35,500.00 34,000.00 35500
100-0000-316200 INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX 355,000.00 223,000.00 355000
100-0000-316300 FINANCIAL INSTITUTION TAX 5,100.00 0.00 5100
100-0000-321100 ALCOHOL LICENSE 28,000.00 28,000.00 28000
100-0000-321150 CATERING EVENT PERMIT 0.00 0.00 0
100-0000-322210 ZONING & LAND USE FEES 6,000.00 15,000.00 6000
100-0000-322215 ANNEXATION FEE 500.00 500.00 500
100-0000-322230 SIGN PERMIT 1,000.00 1,300.00 1000
100-0000-322240 VARIANCE APPLICATION FEE 2,500.00 2,000.00 2500
100-0000-322250 DEMOLITION PERMIT 300.00 300.00 300
100-0000-322990 PARADE/PUBLIC ASSEMBLY FEE 500.00 300.00 500
100-0000-322995 PARADE/PUBLIC ASSEMBLY CLEANUP  0.00 0.00 0
100-0000-323100 BUILDING PERMIT 60,000.00 60,000.00 104500
100-0000-323111 CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FEE            4,200.00 4,200.00 4200
100-0000-323120 INSPECTION FEES 27,000.00 0.00 27000
100-0000-323140 ELECTRIC PERMIT FEES 0.00 0.00 0
100-0000-323160 HVAC PERMIT FEES 0.00 0.00 0
100-0000-323900 OTHER - GRADING FEES 5,500.00 3,000.00 5500
100-0000-323901 OTHER - PLAN REVIEW FEES 20,000.00 18,000.00 90100
100-0000-334150 SAFETY GRANT 6,000.00 6,000.00 6000
100-0000-334200 HEALTH GRANT 0.00 0.00 0
100-0000-334250 CARES ACT GRANT 0.00 0.00 0
100-0000-334310 STATE GRANT CAPITAL-LMIG DIRECT         0.00 0.00 119500
100-0000-341400 MISC REVENUE 2,000.00 3,000.00 2000
100-0000-341450 ROOM RENTAL REVENUE 7,500.00 5,000.00 7500
100-0000-343001 ENGINEERING FEE 0.00 0.00 0
100-0000-346100           ANIMAL CONTROL AND SHELTER FEES         0.00 0.00 0
100-0000-349300 BAD CHECK FEE 0.00 0.00 0
100-0000-344260 STORM DRAINAGE 1,600.00 0.00 1600
100-0000-351170 MUNICIPAL COURT FEES 4,000.00 3,000.00 0
100-0000-361000 INTEREST INCOME 100,000.00 1,300.00 170000
100-0000-381000 RENTAL INCOME - DMC 66,000.00 60,000.00 14900
100-1400-341910 ELECTION QUALIFYING FEE 900.00 0.00 900
100-1500-311340 INTANGIBLES TAX 30,000.00 40,000.00 30000
100-1500-311601 REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAX 17,000.00 15,000.00 17000
100-0000-740000 TRANSFER IN FROM RESERVES 227,895.00 0.00 -671000

GENERAL FUND Revenue Totals:  3,263,345.00 2,520,225.00 2771500

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

100-1100-511000 COUNCIL: SALARIES 42,000.00 35,000.00 42,000.00
100-1100-512100 COUNCIL: GROUP INSURANCE 106,200.00 89,000.00 106,200.00
100-1100-512200 COUNCIL: TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA 3,600.00 3,000.00 3,600.00
100-1100-523200 COUNCIL: COMMUNICATIONS - CELL PHONE   2,900.00 2,900.00 2,900.00
100-1100-523500 COUNCIL: TRAVEL 4,000.00 1,000.00 4,000.00
100-1100-523700 COUNCIL: EDUCATION & TRAINING 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
100-1100-531100 COUNCIL: SUPPLIES 500.00 500.00 500.00

162,200.00 134,400.00

100-1300-511000 MAYOR: SALARIES 20,500.00 17,000.00 20,500.00
100-1300-512100 MAYOR: GROUP INSURANCE 37,000.00 60.00 37,000.00
100-1300-512200 MAYOR: TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA 1,700.00 1,400.00 1,700.00
100-1300-523200 MAYOR: COMMUNICATIONS - CELL PHONE 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
100-1300-523500 MAYOR: TRAVEL 1,300.00 1,200.00 1,300.00
100-1300-523700 MAYOR: EDUCATION & TRAINING 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
100-1300-531100 MAYOR: SUPPLIES 200.00 200.00 200.00

BUDGET FY 2023-24
GENERAL FUND - 100 

GENERAL FUND - 100 

COUNCIL Expenditure Totals: 
DEPARTMENT: MAYOR

DEPARTMENT: COUNCIL

Page 1
Exhibit "C"



63,700.00 22,860.00

100-1400-521203 ELECTIONS: PROFESSIONAL OTHER                 20,000.00 15,000.00 20,000.00
100-1400-523300 ELECTIONS: ADVERTISING                             0.00 0.00 0.00
100-1400-523400 ELECTIONS: PRINTING AND BINDING                    0.00 0.00 0.00
100-1400-531100 ELECTIONS: SUPPLIES                                0.00 0.00 0.00

20,000.00 15,000.00

100-1500-511000 ADMINISTRATION: SALARIES                                369,198.00 383,016.00 369198
100-1500-512100 ADMINISTRATION: GROUP INSURANCE           161,000.00 164,000.00 143207
100-1500-512200 ADMINISTRATION: TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA     34,000.00 32,000.00 34000
100-1500-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                34,000.00 25,000.00 34000
100-1500-512700 WORKERS COMP                            4,300.00 4,300.00 4300
100-1500-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      76,000.00 70,000.00 76000
100-1500-521201 PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 20,000.00 19,000.00 20000
100-1500-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      112,000.00 57,000.00 12000
100-1500-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES (IT)                 19,000.00 19,245.00 19000
100-1500-521315 TECHNICAL SERVICES-PAYROLL ACH          3,600.00 3,600.00 3600
100-1500-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   4,200.00 4,078.00 4200
100-1500-522320 RENTAL EQUIPMENT       3,500.00 3,010.00 3500
100-1500-523000 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                32,000.00 32,000.00 20000
100-1500-523100 INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPL               500.00 15,000.00 500
100-1500-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          13,500.00 13,000.00 13500
100-1500-523300 ADVERTISING                             3,000.00 2,500.00 3000
100-1500-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    1,100.00 1,116.00 1100
100-1500-523500 TRAVEL                                  4,000.00 4,000.00 4000
100-1500-523600 DUES & FEES                             12,000.00 12,112.00 9000
100-1500-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    4,435.00 4,435.00 4435
100-1500-523910 UNIFORMS 1,400.00 1,400.00 1400
100-1500-531100 SUPPLIES                                55,000.00 45,000.00 50000
100-1500-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  1,700.00 1,550.00 1700
100-1500-531300 FOOD                                    3,000.00 2,500.00 3000
100-1500-531600 SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 5,000.00 5000
100-1500-541000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 15,000.00 296,000.00 15000
100-1500-581000 CONTINGENCY 0.00 0.00 0
100-1500-999999 PMTS TO OTHER - DAWSON 45,000.00 550,000.00 45000

1,037,433.00 1,769,862.00

100-1565-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      5,400.00 5,387.00 5,400.00
100-1565-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   43,000.00 43,000.00 43,000.00
100-1565-522201 R & M - GRHOF 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
100-1565-522202 R & M - DISTILLERY 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
100-1565-522203 R & M - RESTURANT 5,000.00 5,000.00
100-1565-531100 SUPPLIES                                25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00
100-1565-531220 ENERGY NATURAL GAS                      9,460.00 9,000.00 9,460.00
100-1565-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      56,600.00 51,307.00 56,600.00
100-1565-540000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00

174,460.00 163,694.00

100-3900-523600 DUES & FEES                             500.00 500.00 0
100-3900-531100 SUPPLIES                                1,540.00 1,036.00 500

2,040.00 1,536.00

100-4200-511000 SALARIES                                349,640.00 259,177.00 349640
100-4200-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         145,000.00 94,000.00 107000
100-4200-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 27,100.00 21,000.00 27100
100-4200-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                20,000.00 5,000.00 20000
100-4200-512700 WORKERS COMP                            27,000.00 27,000.00 27000
100-4200-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      6,000.00 6,000.00 0
100-4200-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                5,000.00 4,500.00 0
100-4200-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      7,000.00 7,000.00 7000
100-4200-522110           GARBAGE SERVICES                        2,500.00 2,000.00 2500
100-4200-522140 STREET SWEEPING/GROUNDSUP               16,100.00 14,300.00 16100
100-4200-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   50,300.00 50,000.00 17200
100-4200-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          5,360.00 5,240.00 5360
100-4200-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    100.00 100.00 100
100-4200-523500 TRAVEL                                  2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
100-4200-523600 DUES & FEES                             3,000.00 1,513.00 3,000.00
100-4200-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    2,000.00 1,500.00 2,000.00
100-4200-523910 UNIFORM SERVICE                         3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
100-4200-531100 SUPPLIES                                35,000.00 22,000.00 35,000.00
100-4200-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      51,000.00 47,033.00 51,000.00
100-4200-531240 ENERGY BOTTLED GAS                      1,200.00 1,000.00 1,200.00

CITY HALL BLDG Totals: 

MAYOR Expenditure Totals: 

DEPARTMENT: ELECTIONS

ELECTIONS Expenditure Totals: 
DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION

DEPARTMENT: CITY HALL BUILDING

DEPARTMENT: ANIMAL CONTROL

DEPARTMENT: ROADS

ADMINISTRATION Totals: 

ANIMAL CONTROL Totals: 

Page 2
Exhibit "C"



100-4200-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  13,000.00 10,000.00 13,000.00
100-4200-531300 FOOD                                    1,300.00 0.00 1,300.00
100-4200-541400 CAPITAL 12,000.00 9500
100-4250-522200 STORM DRAINAGE 11,400.00 1,000.00 0

796,000.00 584,363.00

100-6200-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   42,000.00 20,000.00 39000
100-6200-522202 R & M - FARMERS MKT 10,000.00 10000
100-6200-531100 SUPPLIES                                20,000.00 20000
100-6200-531102 SUPPLIES - FARMERS MKT                                10,000.00 0
100-6200-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      17,000.00 25,000.00 17000
100-6200-531232 ENERGY ELECTRICITY - FARMERS MKT                     5,000.00 20,528.00 0
100-6200-542100 CAPITAL OUTLAY - PARKS 0.00 0.00 0

104,000.00 65,528.00

100-7400-511000 SALARIES                                241,909.00 211,300.00 179000
100-7400-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         156,500.00 79,000.00 87000
100-7400-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 19,000.00 16,700.00 14000
100-7400-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                18,000.00 7,508.00 18000
100-7400-512700           WORKERS COMP                            800.00 800.00 800
100-7400-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      47,000.00 43,000.00 31570
100-7400-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                11,000.00 11,000.00 11,000.00
100-7400-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      20,000.00 18,000.00 20,000.00
100-7400-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      13,000.00 11,000.00 13,000.00
100-7400-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
100-7400-522320 RENTAL EQUIPMENT 4,400.00 4,400.00 4,400.00
100-7400-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
100-7400-523300 ADVERTISING                             1,430.00 1,400.00 1,430.00
100-7400-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    500.00 500.00 500.00
100-7400-523500 TRAVEL                                  5,000.00 4,000.00 5,000.00
100-7400-523600 DUES & FEES                             2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00
100-7400-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    6,000.00 4,000.00 6,000.00
100-7400-523800 LICENSES 400.00 400.00 400.00
100-7400-523910 UNIFORMS 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
100-7400-531100 SUPPLIES                                13,500.00 13,500.00 13,500.00
100-7400-531300 FOOD                                    500.00 500.00
100-7400-321270 ENERGY-GASOLINE / DIESEL 3,400.00 3,000.00 3,400.00
100-7400-541400 CAPITAL - PROPERTY (VEHICLE) 0.00 0.00 0.00

572,839.00 440,008.00

100-7540-572000 PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (Chamber of Commerce           12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

100-7550-511000 SALARIES 65,723.00 65,723.00
100-7550-512100 GROUP INSURANCE 52,000.00 52,000.00
100-7550-512200 TAXES 5,100.00 5,100.00
100-7550-512400 RETIREMENT 1,000.00 1,000.00
100-7550-512700 WORKERS COMP 600.00 600.00
100-7550-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL 250.00 250.00
100-7550-521201 PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING 1,000.00 1,000.00
100-7550-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER 100,000.00 100,000.00
100-7550-521300 TECHINCAL SERVICES 500.00 500.00
100-7550-523300 ADVERTISING 2,000.00 2,000.00
100-7550-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING 1,100.00 1,100.00
100-7550-523500 TRAVEL 1,000.00 1,000.00
100-7550-523600 DUES & FEES 1,000.00 1,000.00
100-7550-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING 1,000.00 1,000.00
100-7550-523910 UNIFORMS 500.00 227
100-7550-531100 SUPPLIES 500.00 500.00
100-7550-531270 ENERGY - GASOLINE 500.00 0
100-7550-531300 FOOD 500.00 0
100-7550-531600 SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 0

100-7550-531000 PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (DDA)             79,400.00 105,000.00 0

330,673.00 117,000.00
GENERAL FUND Expenditure Totals:  3,263,345.00 3,314,251.00

2,771,500.00

GENERAL FUND Revenue Totals:  3,263,345.00
GENERAL FUND Expenditure Totals:  3,263,345.00

DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & ZONING

DEPARTMENT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Totals: 

ROADS Totals: 

PARKS Totals: 

PLANNING & ZONING Totals: 

DEPARTMENT: PARKS

Page 3
Exhibit "C"



REVENUE APRA
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

231 DRUG FUND 0.00 0.00
231 INTEREST 0.00 0.00 240

DRUG FUND 231 Revenue Totals 0.00 0.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

231 NARCAN 0.00 0.00

DRUG FUND 231 Expenditure Totals 0.00 0.00
Other 240

DRUG FUND 231 Revenue Totals 0.00
DRUG FUND 231 Expenditure Totals 0.00

REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

275-0000-314100 HOTEL/MOTEL TAX                         7,500.00 6,000.00 7300
HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Revenue Totals 7,500.00 6,000.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

275-7540-572000 PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (Chamber of Commerce 7,500.00 6,000.00 7300
HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Expenditure Totals 7,500.00 6,000.00

HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Revenue Totals 7,500.00
HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Expenditure Totals 7,500.00

REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

285-7550-000000 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  (DDA)        4,400.00 4,400.00
285-7500-740000 TRANSFER IN FROM RESERVES 75,000.00 25,000.00

DDA FUND 285 Revenue Totals 79,400.00 29,400.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

285-7500-521200           PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      2,000.00 2,000.00
285-7500-521201           PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 1,200.00 1,200.00
285-7500-521203           PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      0.00 0.00
285-7500-523300           ADVERTISING                             0.00 0.00
285-7500-523700           EDUCATION & TRAINING                    1,200.00 1,200.00
285-7500-531000           FIREWORKS PURCHASE                      0.00 0.00
285-7500-531100           SUPPLIES                                0.00 0.00
285-7500-540000           GRANT DISBURSEMENTS                     75,000.00 25,000.00
285-7550-531000 OTHER EXPENDITURES FROM RESERVES 0.00 0.00

DDA FUND 285 Expenditure Totals 79,400.00 29,400.00

DDA FUND 285 Revenue Totals 79,400.00
DDA FUND 285 Expenditure Totals 79,400.00

DRUG -231

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND (DDA) - 285

DRUG - 231

HOTEL/MOTEL FUND - 275

HOTEL/MOTEL FUND - 275

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND (DDA) - 285

Page 4
Exhibit "C"



REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

320-0000-313200 SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 0.00 0.00
320-0000-361000 INTEREST INCOME                         0.00 100.00
320-0000-361000 TRANSFER IN FROM RESERVES 59,000.00 42,900.00

 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Revenue Totals 59,000.00 43,000.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

320-1000-541300           CAPITAL OUTLAY - CITY HALL ACQUISITION  0.00 0.00
320-4200-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - ROADS AND SIDEWALKS    0.00 0.00
320-4200-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-R 50,000.00 34,000.00
320-4300-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - SEWER PROJECTS         0.00 0.00
320-4300-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-S 0.00 0.00
320-4400-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - WATER PROJECTS         0.00 0.00
320-4400-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-W 0.00 0.00
320-6000-541000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - FARMERS MARKET         9,000.00 9,000.00
320-6200-541200           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PARKS AND RECREATION   0.00 0.00

 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Expenditure Totals 59,000.00 43,000.00

 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Revenue Totals 59,000.00
 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Expenditure Totals 59,000.00

REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

327-0000-340000 SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 1,000,000.00 1,599,900.00
327-0000-361000 INTEREST INCOME                         21,000.00 100.00
327-0000-361000 TRANSFER IN FROM RESERVES 1,679,000.00 0.00

 SPLOST VII FUND 327 Revenue Totals 2,700,000.00 1,600,000.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

327-1000-541300           CAPITAL OUTLAY - CITY HALL ACQUISITION  250,000.00 789,000.00
327-4200-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - ROADS AND SIDEWALKS    1,000,000.00 0.00
327-4200-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-R 65,000.00 0.00
327-4300-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - SEWER PROJECTS 0.00 338,500.00
327-4300-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-S 780,000.00 0.00
327-4400-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - WATER PROJECTS         0.00 338,500.00
327-4400-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-W 0.00 34,000.00
327-6000-541000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - FARMERS MARKET         0.00 0.00
327-6200-541200           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PARKS AND RECREATION   605,000.00 100,000.00

 SPLOST VII FUND 327 Expenditure Totals 2,700,000.00 1,600,000.00

 SPLOST VII FUND 327 Revenue Totals 2,700,000.00
 SPLOST VII FUND 327 Expenditure Totals 2,700,000.00

REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

328-0000-334310 SPECIAL PURPOSE REVENUE 500,000.00 0.00 89000
GRHOF SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND 328 Revenue Totals 500,000.00 0.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

328-6172-541000 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 500,000.00 0.00 89000
OF SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND 328 Revenue Totals 500,000.00 0.00

SPECIAL PURPOSE  FUND 328 Revenue Totals 500,000.00
SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND 328 Expenditure Totals 500,000.00

IMPACT FEE 1

REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

505-0000-341400        MISC REV/COPIES/PRINTING                1,600.00 100,000.00
505-0000-344210        WATER CHARGES                           895,000.00 800,000.00
505-0000-344255        SEWERAGE CHARGES                        916,000.00 900,000.00

GRHOF SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND - 328

GRHOF SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND - 328

SPLOST VI FUND - 320

SPLOST VII FUND - 327                           

ENTERPRISE FUND - 505                           

SPLOST VI FUND - 320

SPLOST VII FUND - 327                           

Page 5
Exhibit "C"



505-0000-349000        ADMINISTRATIVE FEE 4,200.00 5,000.00
505-0000-349001        PENALTIES WATER & SEWER 19,000.00 18,000.00
505-0000-349002        RECONNECT FEE 4,000.00 2,000.00
505-0000-349300        BAD CHECK FEE 1,500.00 1,500.00
505-0000-351400        FINES 0.00 0.00
505-0000-361000        INTEREST INCOME 130,000.00 2,400.00
505-0000-381001        RENTAL INCOME HOUSE 9,000.00 9,000.00
505-0000-383000 REIMBURSEMENT FOR DAMAGED PROPERTY 0.00 0.00
505-0000-611000 OTHER FINANCING USES (RESERVES) 387,207.00 219,783.00

ENTERPRISE FUND Revenue Totals: 2,367,507.00 2,057,683.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

505-4300-511000 SALARIES 225,926.00 177,836.00
505-4300-512100 GROUP INSURANCE 100,000.00 82,000.00
505-4300-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA 18,000.00 15,500.00
505-4300-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 15,000.00 12,000.00
505-4300-512700 WORKERS COMP 10,000.00 10,000.00
505-4300-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL 4,000.00 3,000.00
505-4300-521201 PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING 16,000.00 16,000.00
505-4300-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING 100,000.00 100,000.00
505-4300-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER 6,000.00 10,000.00
505-4300-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES 14,000.00 15,000.00
505-4300-521315 TECHNICAL SERVICES: ENVIR MGMT          60,000.00 50,000.00
505-4300-522110 GARBAGE SERVICES 7,500.00 7,500.00
505-4300-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 80,000.00 56,000.00
505-4300-523100 INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPL 300.00 0.00
505-4300-523200 COMMUNICATIONS 7,000.00 7,000.00
505-4300-523215 POSTAGE / MAIL BILLS 3,200.00 2,900.00
505-4300-523300 ADVERTISING 400.00 350.00
505-4300-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING 1,000.00 1,700.00
505-4300-523500 TRAVEL 1,000.00 1,000.00
505-4300-523600 DUES & FEES 9,000.00 4,000.00
505-4300-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING 2,000.00 2,000.00
505-4300-523800 LICENSES 100.00 100.00
505-4300-523910 UNIFORMS 3,000.00 2,500.00
505-4300-531100 SUPPLIES 36,000.00 35,000.00
505-4300-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY 145,000.00 135,000.00
505-4300-531240 ENERGY BOTTLED GAS 1,300.00 1,300.00
505-4300-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL 7,400.00 7,000.00
505-4300-531300 FOOD 1,600.00 1,000.00
505-4300-561000 DEPRECIATION 450,000.00 428,000.00
505-4300-572000 PMTS TO DAWSON 31,000.00 31,206.00
505-4300-582104 INTEREST BOND 2014 50,000.00 50,000.00

1,405,726.00 1,264,892.00

505-4400-511000 SALARIES 225,926.00 177,836.00
505-4400-512100 GROUP INSURANCE 100,000.00 82,000.00
505-4400-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA 18,000.00 15,500.00
505-4400-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 15,000.00 12,000.00
505-4400-512700 WORKERS COMP 10,000.00 10,200.00
505-4400-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL 10,000.00 3,000.00
505-4400-521201 PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING 16,000.00 16,000.00
505-4400-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING 40,000.00 35,000.00
505-4400-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER 9,000.00 10,000.00
505-4400-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES 14,000.00 12,000.00
505-4400-522110           GARBAGE SERVICES 3,000.00 1,700.00
505-4400-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 40,000.00 32,000.00
505-4400-522320 RENTAL EQUIPMENT 1,300.00 1,000.00
505-4400-523100 INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE (GIRMA) 300.00 0.00
505-4400-523200 COMMUNICATIONS 7,500.00 9,000.00
505-4400-523215 POSTAGE / MAIL BILLS 3,300.00 2,900.00
505-4400-523300 ADVERTISING 3,000.00 350.00
505-4400-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING 1,000.00 1,700.00
505-4400-523500 TRAVEL 1,000.00 1,000.00
505-4400-523600 DUES & FEES 17,000.00 12,000.00
505-4400-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING 6,000.00 4,000.00
505-4400-523800 LICENSES 500.00 500.00
505-4400-523910 UNIFORMS 3,000.00 1,500.00
505-4400-531100 SUPPLIES 63,000.00 46,023.00
505-4400-531115 SUPPLIES: CHEMICALS             55,000.00 39,994.00
505-4400-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY 37,000.00 19,642.00
505-4400-531240 ENERGY BOTTLED GAS 1,300.00 950.00

DEPARTMENT: WATER

DEPARTMENT: SEWER

ENTERPRISE FUND - 505 

SEWER Totals: 

Page 6
Exhibit "C"



505-4400-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  7,400.00 5,115.00
505-4400-531300 FOOD                                    1,600.00 1,000.00
505-4400-531510 WATER PURCHASED FROM EWSA               0.00 0.00
505-4400-561000 DEPRECIATION                            183,000.00 146,000.00
505-4400-572000 PMTS TO DAWSON 31,205.00 31,205.00
505-4400-582104 INTEREST BOND 2014                      37,450.00 37,450.00

961,781.00 768,565.00

ENTERPRISE FUND Revenue Totals: 2,367,507.00
GRAND TOTAL of EXPENDITURES: 2,367,507.00

REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

530-0000-344257 SEWER TAPS                              10,000.00 200,000.00
530-0000-344212 WATER TAPS                              200,000.00 200,000.00
530-0000-610000 TRANSFER IN (RESERVES)/LOAN 10,290,000.00 10,071,000.00

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Revenue Totals 10,500,000.00 10,471,000.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

530-4300-541400 CAPITAL OUTLAY - SEWER                  9,000,000.00 7,587,500.00
530-4400-541400 CAPITAL OUTLAY - WATER                  1,500,000.00 2,883,500.00

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Expenditure Totals 10,500,000.00 10,471,000.00

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Revenue Totals 10,500,000.00
ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Expenditure Totals 10,500,000.00

REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

540-0000-344110 REFUSE COLLECTION CHARGES               240,000.00 225,000.00
540-0000-611000 TRANSFER IN (RESERVES) -9,800.00 5,200.00

GARBAGE FUND 540 Revenue Totals 230,200.00 230,200.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

540-4310-511000 SALARIES                                0.00 0.00
540-4310-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         0.00 0.00
540-4310-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 0.00 0.00
540-4310-522110 GARBAGE SERVICES                        195,000.00 195,000.00
540-4310-523300 ADVERTISING                             200.00 200.00
540-4310-531100 SUPPLIES                                35,000.00 35,000.00
540-4310-574000 BAD DEBT 0.00 0.00
540-4310-541000 CAPITAL OUTLAY - BUILDING 0.00 0.00

GARBAGE FUND 540 Expenditure Totals 230,200.00 230,200.00

GARBAGE FUND 540 Revenue Totals 230,200.00
GARBAGE FUND 540 Expenditure Totals 230,200.00

REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

790-0000-321210 REAL ESTATE FEES                        1,000.00 125.00 350
790-0000-349100 CEMETERY LOT SALES                      30,000.00 9,000.00 31500
790-0000-361000 INTEREST INCOME                         2,000.00 100.00 4300
790-0000-611000 TRANSFER IN (RESERVES) 16,430.00 109,775.00 5090

CEMETERY FUND 790 Revenue Totals 49,430.00 119,000.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2023-24 Recmnd 2022-23 Budget

790-4950-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   12,430.00 12,000.00 6600
790-4950-523600 DUES & FEES                             200.00 200.00 640
790-4950-531100 SUPPLIES                                6,800.00 6,800.00 11000
790-4950-542500 CAPITAL OUTLAY - OTHER             30,000.00 100,000.00 23000

CEMETERY FUND 790 Expenditure Totals 49,430.00 119,000.00

CEMETERY FUND - 790

WATER Totals: 

CEMETERY FUND - 790

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND - 530

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND - 530

GARBAGE FUND - 540

GARBAGE FUND - 540

Page 7
Exhibit "C"



CEMETERY FUND 790 Revenue Totals 49,430.00
CEMETERY FUND 790 Expenditure Totals 49,430.00

Page 8
Exhibit "C"



Exhibit "D"



Exhibit "D"



Exhibit "D"



Exhibit "D"



Exhibit "D"



Exhibit "D"



Exhibit "D"



Exhibit "D"



Exhibit "D"



Exhibit "D"



Exhibit "D"



                                           
 

 

      
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE 2025 MEETING CALENDAR                  _ 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/18/2024     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  
TO APPROVE THE 2025 MEETING CALENDAR 

 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
      
DETAILS REVIEWED AT THE 10/21/2024 CITY COUNCIL MEETING; FINAL CALENDAR 

REFLECTS DISCUSSION POINTS    
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
     APPROVE AS PRESENTED   
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:   Beverly Banister, City Clerk_______________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  7b   
 

 

 



January 9 5:00 pm July 14 5:30 pm
January 13 5:30 pm July 21 5:00 pm
January 27 5:30 pm July 28 5:30 pm

February 3 5:00 pm August 4 5:00 pm
February 10 5:30 pm August 11 5:30 pm
February 24 5:30 pm August 18 5:00 pm

August 25 5:30 pm

March 3 5:00 pm September 8 5:00 pm
March 10 5:30 pm September 15 5:30 pm
March 17 5:00 pm September 22 5:00 pm
March 24 5:30 pm September 29 5:30 pm

April 7 5:00 pm October 13 5:30 pm
April 14 5:30 pm October 20 5:00 pm
April 21 5:00 pm October 27 5:30 pm
April 28 5:30 pm

May 5 5:00 pm November 3 5:00 pm
May 8 5:30 pm November 6 5:30 pm

May 12 5:30 pm November 10 5:30 pm
May 19 5:00 pm November 17 5:00 pm

June 2 5:00 pm December 1 5:00 pm
June 9 5:30 pm December 2 5:30 pm

June 16 5:00 pm December 8 5:30 pm
June 23 5:30 pm December 15 5:00 pm

Historic Preservation Commission

Downtown Development Authority
Regular Meeting

May

Downtown Development Authority

Planning Commission
City Council Regular Meeting & Work Session

Planning Commission

October
Planning Commission

City Council Regular Meeting & Work Session

City Council Regular Meeting & Work Session
Historic Preservation Commission

Planning Commission
Downtown Development Authority

Historic Preservation Commission
Planning Commission

November
City Council Regular Meeting

City Council Regular Meeting & Work Session

December
City Council Regular Meeting

Historic Preservation Commission

City Council Regular Meeting

City Council Regular Meeting & Work Session

June

City Council Regular Meeting & Work Session

City Council Regular Meeting

City Council Regular Meeting

Downtown Development Authority

July
Planning Commission
City Council Regular Meeting & Work Session

August
City Council Regular Meeting

Historic Preservation Commission

City Council Regular Meeting
Planning Commission

September
City Council Regular Meeting

Downtown Development Authority

January

February

Planning Commission

Planning Commission
City Council Regular Meeting & Work Session

March

April

Downtown Development Authority

Planning Commission
Historic Preservation Commission

Planning Commission
City Council Regular Meeting & Work Session

City Council Regular Meeting
Planning Commission
City Council Regular Meeting & Work Session

City of Dawsonville 
2025 Meeting Schedule



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/18/2024  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 
 

    
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8    
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/18/2024  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO APPOINT THE FOLLOWING PERSONS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION: 
 

• APPOINT RANDY DAVIS TO POST 3: FULFILLING THE UNEXPIRED TERM OF SANDRA SAWYER 
THROUGH 12/31/2026 (RANDY DAVIS WAS ORIGINALLY SERVING IN THE MEMBER AT LARGE 
POSITION) 

• REAPPOINT JOSH NICHOLS TO POST 2 FOR A THREE YEAR TERM: 01/01/2025 – 12/31/2027 
• EXTEND ASHLEY STEPHENSON’S TERM IN POST 4 TO EXPIRE 12/31/2026 (TERM SHOULD BE 

THREE YEARS AND WAS INCORRECTLY STATED AT THE TIME OF HER APPOINTMENT.  SHE 
HAS BEEN CONTACTED AND IS WILLING TO SERVE THE ADDITIONAL YEAR) 

• APPOINT MADISON EIBERGER TO POST 1: FULFILLING THE UNEXPIRED TERM OF ALEXIS 
NOGGLE THROUGH 12/31/2024 AND A THREE YEAR TERM FROM 01/01/2025 – 01/01/2027 

• APPOINT DR. SABA HAERINGER TO MEMBER AT LARGE: FULFILLING THE UNEXPIRIED TERM 
OF RANDY DAVIS THROUGH 12/31/2024 AND A THREE YEAR TERM FROM 01/01/2025 – 
01/01/2027 

 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

NEW MEMBERS MADISON EIBERGER AND DR. SABA HAERINGER WILL BE IN ATTENDANCE 
FOR THEIR APPOINTMENT.  ALL VETTING HAS BEEN COMPLETED 
 

   
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDS APPOINTMENT AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  9      
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    BID SELECTION: SHELTER FOR MAIN STREET PARK 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/18/2024  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL FOR BID SELECTION ON NEW SHELTER (#4) FOR MAIN STREET PARK 
NEAR THE PICKLEBALL COURTS TO BE LOCATED ON THE OLD SKATEPARK CONCRETE PAD 

 
   FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE $20,000 AMICALOLA EMC GRANT FOR ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT AWARDED TO THE DDA WHICH HAS BEEN APPROVED TO BE TRANSFERRED TO 
THE CITY.  BALANCE TO BE PAID OUT OF FY2025 GENERAL FUND 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

• BID #1: JEFF REGISTER BUILDING & TRUSS – INCLUDES LABOR & MATERIALS:  
TOTAL $21,750.00 

 

• BID #2: LOTYE BENNETT (LABOR ONLY - $23,650.00) PLUS SHOAL CREEK SUPPLY 
(MATERIALS ONLY - $18,195.00):  TOTAL $41,845.00 

 

• BID #3: MICHAEL INGEBRIGTSEN (LABOR ONLY - $19,400.00) PLUS SHOAL CREEK SUPPLY 
(MATERIALS ONLY - $18,195.00): TOTAL $37,595.00 

 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDS BID #1 – THIS SHELTER WILL MATCH SHELTER #1 AND #3 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   10     
 

 

 













                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    SPECIAL CALLED MEETINGS FOR MAYOR & COUNCIL RETREAT 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/18/2024  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   MAYOR WALDEN TO CALL FOR TWO SPECIAL CALLED MEETINGS REGARDING THE 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL RETREAT: 

 
• DECEMBER 13, 2024 AND DECEMBER 14, 2024 
• AMICALOLA LODGE, 418 AMICALOLA FALLS ROAD, DAWSONVILLE 

 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 
  
 
 

   
    

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
    RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: John Walden, Mayor 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  11      
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/18/2024  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE CITY UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES:   
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     12     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 PREPARED NOVEMBER 12 FOR NOVEMBER 18,2024, AGENDA 

Veteran’s Day: Staff were proud to put up and take down the flags along highways 53, 9, and Shoal Creek 
for Veteran’s Day. Monday, November 11th the Veteran Affairs sponsored a parade from 2:30 – 4:00 PM. 
The parade started in the Hwy 9 side parking lot of the Dawson County Junior High School, turned left onto 
Hwy 9 S toward the town square, circled the historic courthouse, turned right and continued down Hwy 9 S, 
turned right onto Academy Avenue, turned right onto Hwy 53 E, turned left onto Allen Street, and dispersed 
into the Junior High School or City Hall parking lots. 
 
57th Annual Mountain Moonshine Festival: The Mayor and the City Manager participated in critique with 
K4K on the evening of Monday, November 11th. 
 
City of Dawsonville Food Bank: The Dawson County High School CTAE program is sponsoring food 
drive program to help us with badly needed food items. We also had an anonymous donor who committed 
a $1,000.00 monthly donation for our food bank. The size of our food pantry was more than doubled to 
meet a great need in our community. 
 
Amicalola Electric Membership Corporation Donation: The city received a $20,000.00 grant from AEMC to be 
used toward construction of a rest room and shelter to serve the pickleball courts and other amenities on that end of 
the park. This is the third year in a row we have received this gracious award. We are in the process of getting bids 
on the shelter construction. 
 
Christmas Special Event: November 23rd is our tree lighting, parade, Jingle Market, food trucks, dancers, live 
music, and Santa Claus event. Food trucks will arrive at 2 PM and open around 3 PM and the Jingle Market will be 
open then as well. The parade led by Santa starts at 4 PM. After the parade, you can get Santa pictures at the 
Farmer’s Market as well as dine from a selection of nine food trucks. There will be music, dancing, and the tree 
lighting is at 6 PM. Plans are underway for the 2nd annual Light Up Dawsonville decoration contest. 
 
Rental Space - Distillery: Granddaddy Mimms opened the weekend of Moonshine Festival and are open Thursdays 
through Sundays at the present time. 
 
Patio: The patio renovation will begin just after the Christmas Tree Lighting. 
 
Disc Golf Expansion: the addition of nine more holes to our disc golf course utilizing the property of the Board of 
Education is moving along nicely. The trail is complete, the course laid out, the baskets installed, sign stands 
received, and maps under development. 
 
GDOT Work on the Downtown Roundabout: Work should start soon with the plan to conduct most of it during 
nighttime hours. 
 
Shoal Creek Bridge Construction & Paving Project: This project is underway.  



GDOT TAP Grant: A GDOT Transportation Alternative Grant was submitted for consideration, and we have been 
advised it looks promising which may provide funding for roundabouts at Hwy 9S and Perimeter Road as well as at 
Allen Street and Hwy 53. 

Georgia Racing Hall OF Fame:  

• The GRHOF is serving as a donation point for hurricane relief supplies.  
 

TSPLOST: Planning will begin in earnest after the first of the year as we kick off our transportation projects. 

Impact Fees: The City Council approved the revised CIE, and it has been submitted to DCA for their approval. DCA 
requested additional information from GMRC and we await words of acceptance. 

Streetlight Conversion: GA Power will be converting all the streetlights the city is responsible for to LED, which 
should save power usage and be cost effective over the long haul.  

DCA Historic Resource Survey for CLG $6,000.00 Grant: The final study is nearing completion and will include 
consideration of the National Register of Historic Districts nomination for downtown, which would provide monetizable 
tax credit to incentivize revitalization. 

Governor’s Office of Planning & Budget Grant for Water System Infrastructure due to Population Increase: 
No news on the grant we applied for offered by the Governor’s Office of OPB that can be awarded to municipalities 
experiencing significant population increases. The grant request totaled $1,154,720.00 and would be used to cover 
the cost of drilling and setting up operation of the new well. The grant requires a 75-25 match; so, our portion would 
be $285,000.00. We have already budgeted in our Enterprise Fund for the total amount. If awarded, this could 
represent a savings of at least $896,220.00. The plans and design for the well are complete.  
 
Water System Capacity Increase: EPD has approved testing at the potential spring site. Bids have been obtained 
and testing started October 21st with additional testing to occur in the next few weeks. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant: EPD has approved the NPDES permitting USDA is evaluating the project, and they 
have moved it to the next phase of review with the national office requesting a rewrite of the underwriting. Heavy 
sludge levels at the current WWTP due primarily to high strength poultry waste, our existing pond will need to be 
dredged soon, estimated cost just under $1 million. 
 
ARPA Grant: We have a $3,300,000.00 grant from ARPA for the wastewater treatment plant. Those funds are being 
managed by GEFA. First, they advised that the funds do not have to wait until project completion to be paid; thus, we 
could expend those funds at the start of the project well before the deadline.  Additionally, we learned that while 
GEFA doesn’t have a 40-year loan, that is one of the reasons we looked at USDA first, they do have access to 
additional state funds that have that option. We will be getting GEFA some additional information and looking at 
possible funding options through them. That has always been our plan B should USDA not work out. We will keep 
you informed of this issue as we investigate this loan option with GEFA. 
 
Generator Grants – GEMA: Staff have worked hard to prepare grant request packages that have been submitted to 
GEMA for several generators that would be permanently installed at several of our water wells, and the sewage lift 
stations. We received word that they are in the final review stages, and we are still in consideration. Additional 
information including GPS coordinates was provided to GEMA this week. 



Dawson County Hazard Mitigation Task Force: Last updated in 2018 with city participation, both the City Manager 
and the Public Works Director participated this week in a virtual working group revising the plan for 2023. The plan 
has been submitted to GEMA and FEMA and public hearings are scheduled at the library on November 13th and the 
Sr. Center on November 15th. Once that step is completed, it will be returned to the City Council for adoption 
consideration. 
 
LGRMS Safety Grant: For the tenth year in a row, we received the fully allowable safety grant from LGRMS. This 
year’s amount was $6,300.00. Funds will be used to reimburse our purchase of some high visibility T-shirts making 
employee safer working in and around traffic, Bluetooth jobsite ear buds, mesh safety vests, a back-up camera for 
the skid steer, plug in flasher lights to make vehicles more visible, and a wet umbrella stand for City Hall lobby to 
lessen risk of slip, trips and falls. There will be a ‘big’ check event scheduled soon. 

Flock Public Safety Cameras: Staff are working with Flock cameras and the DCSO regarding installation of 
cameras at locations in the city. The Sheriff’s Office is placing some throughout the county and the school system is 
looking at cameras at each school’s entrance/exit. 
 
Sidewalk and Road Shoulder Maintenance: Public Works continued pressure washing all city sidewalks, curbs, 
and gutters. 

Main Street Park: 
 

• Playground & Shade: Staff continue researching shade for various locations in the park, including the 
playground, skate park, pickleball courts, and the dog park. We received $10,000.00 from the Dawsonville 
Civitan Club which will be used for this project over the inclusive playground area. Impact Fees could be 
used to supplement this grant. Our goal is to get 75-90% of the equipment under some form of shade. Staff 
met with an expert on July 8th, and we received his recommendations and are evaluating these projects 
which are anticipated to cost more than $100,000.00. The mulch was replaced on November 11 and 
November 12. 

• Water Fountains: We continue evaluating additional locations for water fountains within the park, each 
costing about $7,000. 

• Stage: Staff are researching options for this project. 
• Dog Park: Research into turf improvement, shade, and water fountain is underway. We have a donor who 

we are meeting with interested in possibly donating shade for this area. A gentleman recently donated 
$1,000.00 to the addition of trees in this area. We added to that amount and now there are several future 
shade trees growing in the park. 

• Splash Pad: Research into the possibility of adding this amenity is underway. The current cost estimate is 
over $350,000.00. Impact Fees could help fund this project.  

• Power for Amphitheater & Christmas Tree Walk: We are working with GA Power for additional power for 
the future amphitheater. Impact Fees could provide a great source of revenue for this project. 

• Cannery & Multi-use Facility: Staff have been meeting with several interested individuals, groups, and 
agencies all interested in replacing the cannery that was once in our community. We are working to build a 
coalition of committed people and agencies that can join to design a facility and find grant funding for land 
acquisition, construction, and operation. Early vision sees the facility not only being a cannery, but a dual 
kitchen that includes incubator space, refrigerated cold/frozen storage, classroom, emergency shelter for  
warming needs and other weather events, etc.  
 

Downtown Development Update:  

• The plan is finalized, and implementation is underway. 



• Approval was given by GDOT, and a letter requesting assistance from GMRC was drafted to begin work on 
the Reconnecting Communities Planning Grant application. 
  

Economic Development:   

• The Downtown Dawsonville Branding process is nearing completion.   
• The ABAC Georgia Rural Development Center funded hotel feasibility study for Downtown Dawsonville 

being conducted by the Highland’s Group is underway 
• A new HWY 53 Billboard contract by the DDA has begun including five businesses. 
• Staff authored a November article for the Neighbors of Dawsonville magazine promoting fun things to do in 

our area. 
 

Placemaking Projects: 

• Staff are working to schedule oral history recordings to tie to local historic and cultural preservation; future 
placemaking projects will tie to these through an ARCGIS story map. 
 

Commissions Update: We have two seats to fill on the Planning Commission, one to fill on the DDA, and one to fill 
on the Historic Preservation Commission. The Planning Commission was cancelled in November due to no agenda 
items.  

Personnel:  
 

• We held a Staff Meeting and luncheon on November 12th. 
• Staff will be participating in the Career Exploration Day on November 14th at Dawson County Jr. High 

School. 
• Interviews for Assistant City Manager will begin before Thanksgiving. 

 
Leak Adjustments: There was one leak adjustment this month, water $35.42 and sewer $71.63 for a total 
of $107.05.  



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE DIRECTOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/18/2024    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2024 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Director   

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  13   
 

 

 



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

July 1, 2024 - Oct 31, 2024

33%

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
      Taxes 2,546,100$       1,117,506$       43.89%
      Licenses and permits 93,100              47,262              50.76%
      Intergovernmental revenues 56,000              15,000              26.79%
      Fees 331,700            85,446              25.76%
      Other 185,400            83,618              45.10%

               Total revenues 3,212,300         1,348,832         41.99%

EXPENDITURES
   Department:
      Council 166,200            49,998              30.08%
      Mayor 65,700              16,852              25.65%
      Elections 20,000              -                   0.00%
      Administration 1,170,762         296,850            25.36%
      City Hall building 189,500            59,979              31.65%
      Animal control 2,040                100                   4.90%
      Roads 725,800            249,119            34.32%
      Parks 114,200            30,256              26.49%
      Planning and zoning 569,000            150,549            26.46%
      Economic development 189,098            140,538            74.32%

 
               Total expenditures 3,212,300         994,241            30.95%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 354,591            

      Transfer in From Reserves (354,591)          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND

July 1, 2024 - Oct 31, 2024

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
       Water fees 950,000$        360,561$        37.95%
       Sewer fees 1,050,000       469,665          44.73%
       Garbage fees 301,200          121,005          40.17%
       Miscellaneous 269,600          80,759            29.96%

               
               Total revenues 2,570,800       1,031,990       40.14%

EXPENDITURES
        Depreciation 633,000          222,487          35.15%
        Garbage service 301,200          93,381            31.00%
        Group insurance 200,600          46,224            23.04%
        Insurance 600                 -                  0.00%
        Interest 77,000            21,286            27.64%
        Payroll taxes 28,000            10,783            38.51%
        Professional 203,000          44,529            21.94%
        Miscellaneous 163,200          56,728            34.76%
        Repairs/supplies 286,000          101,508          35.49%
        Retirement 30,000            10,481            34.94%
        Salaries 332,000          142,601          42.95%
        Technical services 104,000          39,936            38.40%
        Utilities 212,200          53,815            25.36%

               Total expenditures 2,570,800       843,759          32.82%

INCOME (LOSS) 188,231          



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VI

July 1, 2024 - Oct 31, 2024

SPLOST VI
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Interest 1,400                374                   26.71%
       Other 7,600                -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 9,000                374                   4.16%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   25                     #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks -                   #DIV/0!
       Public works equipment - roads -                   -                   0.00%
       Sewer projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market 9,000                3,000                33.33%
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 9,000                3,025                33.61%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (2,651)              

      Transfer in From Reserves 2,651                
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VII

July 1, 2024 - Oct 31, 2024

SPLOST VII
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes 1,300,000         419,184            32.24%
       Interest 70,000              29,019              41.46%
       Other 1,535,000         -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 2,905,000         448,203            15.43%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition 1,000,000         60,859              6.09%
       Roads and sidewalks 1,000,000         16,362              1.64%
       Public works equipment - roads 25,000              -                   0.00%
       Land Acq. / Downtown -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects/Sewer Projects 780,000            7,925                0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Parks and recreation 100,000            9,284                0.00%

               Total expenditures 2,905,000         94,430              3.25%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 353,773            

      Transfer in From Reserves (353,773)          
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   


	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2. 10.21.2024 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session.DRAFT
	14. 2. Amended budget for audit.pdf
	Amended 23-24


	7b. 1 Executive Summary For  2025 MEETINGS CALENDAR
	7b. 2. 2025 Meeting Calendar
	Sheet1

	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items PC APPT
	10. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items MSP SHELTER #4
	10. 2. SHELTER BIDS
	20241113112431969.pdf
	20241113112441811.pdf
	20241113112454422.pdf

	11. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CALLED MEETINGS
	12. 1.  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	12. 2. 11182024 CITY MANAGER REPORT for the CCM
	13. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE DIRECTOR
	13. 2. Financial Statements-OCT24
	GF Budget
	WS vs Budget
	SPLOST
	SPLOST VII




